
   

San Mateo County Measure K Oversight Committee  
Thursday, February 7, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
 College of San Mateo, College Heights Conference Room, Building 10, Room 468  
 1700 West Hillsdale Boulevard, San Mateo, CA 94402 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance Chair Sam Hutkins 
  
2.  Call to Order and Roll Call    Chair Sam Hutkins 
  
3.  Public Comment  
(This item is reserved for persons wishing to address the Committee on any Committee-related matters not otherwise on 
this agenda, and on any listed agenda items other than those Matters Set for a Specified Time or on the Regular Agenda. 
Members of the public who wish to address the Committee should complete a speaker request form. Speakers are 
customarily limited to two minutes.) 

 

  
4.  Motion to Approve Minutes of the Meeting of November 29, 2018 Chair Sam Hutkins  

5. Motion to Revise Measure K Oversight Committee Bylaws to increase the 
length of the term from two years to four years, for a maximum 12-year 
term, subject to approval of the Board of Supervisors 

County Staff 

 
6.  Informational Reports 
 

a. Recommendations from Performance Measures Ad Hoc Committee 
 

b. Requests from December 6, 2018 Committee meeting      
 
7.  Motion to Approve Measure K Oversight Committee Annual Report and 

Submit to Board of Supervisors for its February 26, 2019 meeting 

 
County Staff 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Sam Hutkins 
 
 

8.  Adjourn Chair Sam Hutkins 
  
Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Individuals who need special assistance or a disability-related 
modification or accommodation (including auxiliary aids or services) to participate in this meeting, or who have a disability 
and wish to request an alternative format for the agenda, meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings that may be 
distributed at the meeting, should contact Sukhmani Purewal at least 2 working days before the meeting at (650) 363-1802 
and/or spurewal@smcgov.org Notification in advance of the meeting will enable the Committee to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting and the materials related to it. Attendees to this meeting are reminded 
that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based products.  
 
Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular meeting are available for public inspection. 
Those records that are distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting are available for public inspection at the same 
time they are distributed to all members, or a majority of the members of the Committee. The Committee has designated the 
office of the County Counsel, located at 400 County Center, Redwood City, CA 94063, for the purpose of making those 
public records available for inspection. 

 

 



Draf
t

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
San Mateo County Measure K Oversight Committee  
Thursday, November 29, 2018, 6:30 p.m. 
College of San Mateo, College Heights Conference Room, Building 10, Room 468  
1700 West Hillsdale Boulevard, San Mateo, CA 94402 
 

 DRAFT MINUTES 
 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance       
 
2.  Call to Order and Roll Call   
 

The meeting was called to order by Honorable Sam Hutkins at 6:32 p.m. 
 
Present:  
Commissioners:  Dan Quigg, Michael Salazar, Ken Chin, David Burow, Michael Kovalich,  Manuel 
Ramirez, Tom Ledda, Tinisch Hollins and Honorable Sam Hutkins. 
 
Staff:  Roberto Manchia, Budget Director; Melissa Andrikopoulos, Deputy County Counsel; 
Sukhmani S. Purewal, Assistant Clerk of the Board; and Sherry Golestan, Deputy Clerk of the 
Board. 
 
Absent:  
Commissioner Naomi Patridge.  

 
4.  Swearing-in and Oath of Office for Tinisch Hollins 
 
     Sherry Golestan, Deputy Clerk of the Board, performed the oath of office. 
 
5.  Public Comment 

(This item is reserved for persons wishing to address the Committee on any Committee-related matters not otherwise on 
this agenda, and on any listed agenda items other than those Matters Set for a Specified Time or on the Regular Agenda. 
Members of the public who wish to address the Committee should complete a speaker request form. Speakers are 
customarily limited to two minutes.) 

 
     None 
 
6. Motion to Approve Minutes of the Meeting of February 8, 2018 

 
Speakers:  
Chair Sam Hutkins, District 2 

 
RESULT:   Approved 
MOTION:  Tom Ledda 
SECOND:   Dan Quigg 
 
 



Draf
t

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
AYES [9]:  Quigg, Salazar, Chin, Burow, Kovalich, Ramirez, Ledda, Hollins, and Hutkins.  
NOES:  None 
ABSENT [1]: Patridge 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

7.  Presentation of 2017-18 Annual Audit of Measure K Sales Tax Receipts and Results of Agreed-Upon   
     Procedures on Measure K Spending 
 
     7.1  Motion to Accept 2017-18 Annual Audit of Measure K Sales Tax Receipts and Results of Agreed-  
            Upon Procedures on Measure K Spending 

 
Speakers:  
Chair Sam Hutkins, District 2 
Juan Raigoza, Controller 
Michael Kovalich, District 4 
Dan Quigg, District 1 
Roberto Manchia, Budget Director 
David Burow, District 3 

 
RESULT:   Approved 
MOTION:  Dan Quigg 
SECOND:   Manuel Ramirez 
AYES [9]:  Quigg, Salazar, Chin, Burow, Kovalich, Ramirez, Ledda, Hollins, and Hutkins.  
NOES:  None 
ABSENT [1]: Patridge 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
3.  Welcome and Introductions, Review of Committee Bylaws 
 

Speakers:  
Roberto Manchia, Budget Director 
Melissa Andrikopoulos, Deputy County Counsel 
Dan Quigg, District 1 
Sherry Golestan, Deputy Clerk of the Board 
David Burow, District 3 
Ken Chin, District 2 
 

8.  Presentation of 2017-18 Performance Report and Budget and Performance Monitoring Table 
 
Speakers:  
Chair Sam Hutkins, District 2 
Roberto Manchia, Budget Director 
Dan Quigg, District 1 
David Burow, District 3 
Manuel Ramirez, District 4 
Michael Kovalich, District 4 
Tinisch Hollins, District 5 
Tom Ledda, District 5 
Paul Okada, Chief Deputy County Counsel 

 
Commissioner Dan Quigg made the motion to accept the 2017-18 Performance Report; however, 
the motion was retracted since no action was needed. 
 
 



Draf
t

Page 3 of 3 
 

     8.1  Motion to Create Ad Hoc Committee on Performance Measures 
  

RESULT:   Approved 
MOTION:  David Burow 
SECOND:   Tom Ledda 
AYES [9]:  Quigg, Salazar, Chin, Burow, Kovalich, Ramirez, Ledda, Hollins, and Hutkins.  
NOES:  None 
ABSENT [1]: Patridge 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 Commissioners Daniel Quigg, District 1; Michael Salazar, District 1; and Michael Kovalich, 

District 4 were appointed to serve on the Ad Hoc Committee. 
 
9.  Presentation of Measure K Education and Outreach Efforts 

Speakers:  
Marshall Wilson, Communications Officer 
Dan Quigg, District 1 

 
10.  Motion to Approve 2018-19 Committee Work Plan 

Speakers:  
Chair Sam Hutkins, District 2 
 
RESULT:   Approved 
MOTION:  Michael Salazar 
SECOND:   Ken Chin 
AYES [9]:  Quigg, Salazar, Chin, Burow, Kovalich, Ramirez, Ledda, Hollins, and Hutkins.  
NOES:  None 
ABSENT [1]: Patridge 
ABSTAIN: None 

      
Item No. 11 was originally not listed on the published agenda.  
 
12.  Set Date of Next Committee Meetings 

  County Staff will email the commissioners to confirm the next meeting date. 
 
13.  Adjourn 
 

RESULT:   Approved 
MOTION:  Michael Salazar 
SECOND:   Tom Ledda 
AYES [9]:  Quigg, Salazar, Chin, Burow, Kovalich, Ramirez, Ledda, Hollins, and Hutkins.  
NOES:  None 
ABSENT [1]: Patridge 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:54 p.m. 



 

 

 

 

 

MEASURE K OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

Fiscal Year 2017‐18 

Annual Report to Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

 

 

 

February 26, 2019 

  



Table of Contents 

Executive Summary …………………………………………………………………………………………………………….….… 1 

Controller’s Report: Audit of Receipts and Results of Agreed Upon Procedures ………………….…….3 

County Manager’s Performance Report ……………………………………………………………………………….… 17 
Appendix A – FY 2016‐17 Performance Table with Budget/Actuals. ................................ 28 
Appendix B – Measure K Financial Summary  ……..……...............................…………….……. 69 
Appendix C – FY 2017‐18 Budget Chart. ............................................................................ 71 

Recommendations from Measure K Performance Ad Hoc Committee ……………………………….…… 72 



 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Overview of Measure K Oversight Committee Activities 

 
Measure A is the ten-year half-cent general sales tax approved by San Mateo County 
voters in November 2012. On November 8, 2016 the voters of San Mateo County 
approved Measure K, which extends Measure A for 20 years. The Measure requires 
the appointment of “a committee to perform an annual audit of the general fund 
revenues generated by [the] Retail Transactions (Sales) and Use Tax.” The Committee 
is bound by a set of Bylaws and Rules of Procedure (“Bylaws”), which set forth the 
operating procedures and duties of the Measure K Oversight Committee. 

 
The Oversight Committee is comprised of ten Board-appointed community members, 
two from each supervisorial district. One of the requirements laid out in the Bylaws is for 
the Committee to present an annual report to the Board of Supervisors with the 
Committee’s review of (1) the annual audit of Measure K receipts, (2) results of the 
Agreed-Upon Procedures (AUP) on Measure K spending, and (3) performance report 
for existing Measure K initiatives. 

 
The Measure K Oversight Committee met in November and February to complete its 
review of the results of the annual audit and AUP performed by the Controller’s Office, 
and the annual performance report prepared by the County Manager’s Office for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. Following the approval of the audit and AUP, an ad 
hoc committee was formed to recommend revisions to performance measures for 
existing programs and initiatives. The annual audit, AUP, and Performance Report for 
FY 2017-18 Measure K initiatives and programs are included in this annual report, 
along with information requested by the Committee and recommendations on 
performance measures from the ad hoc committee. 

 
Summary of Controller’s Audit of Receipts and Review of Spending 

 
The annual report contains the results of the Controller’s audit of Measure K receipts, 
and results of the agreed-upon procedures on Measure K spending for the period 
covering July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018. Measure K receipts in the amount 
$89,602,981 were received, a 7.9% increase from the previous year. Measure K 
expenditures were $88,416,871 in the categories of public safety, health and mental 
health, youth and education, housing and homelessness, parks and environment, older 
adults, veterans and community services, and district-specific spending. 

Page 1



 

There were no exceptions noted in the audit and agreed-upon procedures. It is 
recommended that the Committee accept the Controller’s Report. 

 

 
Summary of County Manager’s Performance Report 

 
Article I, section 1-3 of the Oversight Committee Bylaws states that the Committee shall 
“develop recommendations for the County Manager’s consideration regarding 
appropriate metrics by which the County can assess the impact of Measure A funds on 
programs and services funded in whole or in part by Measure A proceeds”. 

 
There are 475 unique performance measures monitored for Measure K initiatives in 
progress through June 30, 2018. Based on data reported by County departments: 
 52.4% of performance measures are meeting targets for FY2017-18 
 44.2% are not meeting targets or are still in progress  
 3.4% do not have targets in place yet 

 
 
In accordance with the Bylaws, the Oversight Committee formed the Performance 
Measures Ad Hoc Committee to provide recommendations and ask questions about the 
performance of existing Measure K programs and initiatives that were presented in the 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 Performance Report. 

 
The ad hoc committee met twice in January, and recommendations have been 
incorporated in this annual report or will be included in future reports. They include 
changes to the Measure K Performance Reporting structure, changes in how the 
calculations of measures meeting targets are described, Measure K web site additions. 

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



1/17/18 sorted by FY2016‐17 high‐to‐low variance Measure K Financial Summary Page 1 of 2

San Mateo County
Measure K  Oversight Committe
Financial Tracking / Metrics

Budget Budget Budget
FY2016‐17 Actual FY2017‐18 * Actual FY2018‐19

(w/Carryovers) FY2016‐17 Variance (w/Carryovers) FY2017‐18 Variance Explanation of Major Variances (w/Carryovers)

SOURCES
Annual Measure K Revenue 82,000,000$        83,033,888$           1,033,888$         85,524,905$      89,602,981$       4,078,076‐$        91,395,040$      

Fund Balance ‐ Carryovers (Commitments) 88,147,997 88,147,997 128,532,139 128,532,139 124,926,155

Fund Balance ‐ Reserves 10% 8,200,000 8,303,389 103,389 8,552,491 8,960,298 407,808 9,139,504

Fund Balance ‐ Available 38,389,964 38,286,575 (103,389) 22,488,748 22,080,940 (407,808) 26,660,608

Total Sources 216,737,961$      217,771,849$         1,033,888$         245,098,282$    249,176,358$     4,078,076‐$        252,121,307$    

SPENDING (includes Carryovers)

Public Safety 1

45,057,924  8,030,731 37,027,193 39,476,116 13,526,145 25,949,971 Major variances in capital projects still in progress, including 

Public Safety Regional Operations Center (ROC), Pescadero 

and Skylonda Fire Stations

56,099,696

Community Services 7

31,463,588 10,455,720 21,007,868 33,814,739 20,043,590 13,771,149 Major variance in capital and technology projects that are in 

progress: Maple Street Shelter Renovation, Serenity House 

Respite Center Remodel, Geographic Information System 

Implementation, and County Network Expansion.

27,195,733

Housing & Homelessness 4

36,260,723 17,124,988 19,135,735 46,978,116 19,331,031 27,647,085 Major variances are in Affordable Housing projects that are in 

progress or need to be selected through Notice of Funding 

Availability (NOFA) process, and homelessness initiatives that 

just started and in ramp‐up phase

54,223,456

Youth & Education 3

26,764,676 9,848,136 16,916,540 24,757,524 16,666,492 8,091,032 Major variances are in The Big Lift early learning initiative 

(waiting on invoices) and Receiving Home and foster youth 

housing projects (in progress)

15,324,029

Parks and Environment 5 12,942,914 2,992,735 9,950,179 15,486,617 2,321,755 13,164,862 Various Parks projects in progress 18,609,161

Page 69



1/17/18 sorted by FY2016‐17 high‐to‐low variance Measure K Financial Summary Page 2 of 2

San Mateo County
Measure K  Oversight Committe
Financial Tracking / Metrics

Budget Budget Budget
FY2016‐17 Actual FY2017‐18 * Actual FY2018‐19

(w/Carryovers) FY2016‐17 Variance (w/Carryovers) FY2017‐18 Variance Explanation of Major Variances (w/Carryovers)

District‐Specific 0

5,031,671 1,055,009 3,976,662 7,774,151 2,247,098 5,527,053 FY15‐16 District‐Specific Actuals of $1,510,125.65 are 

reflected within actuals of other categories, as the district‐

specific category was not set up until FY16‐17. Additionally, 

variance in district‐specific budgets and actuals are due to 

payment structure of grants.  For most district‐specific 

contracts, the County reimburses organizations in phases 

based on completion of certain portions of the project. Thus, 

while the full amount of the grant agreement is budgeted, 

actuals reflect only portions that have actually been spent 

within that fiscal year. 

8,128,726

Health & Mental Health 2

9,628,906  5,878,153 3,750,753 13,047,717 11,538,360 1,509,357 Major variances are in Serenity House respite center (in 

progress) and contribution to Seton seismic retrofit project (in 

progress)

11,869,166

Older Adults & Veterans 6 3,348,337 2,814,243 534,094 3,133,922 2,742,400 391,522 3,165,725

Total Spending (Current+Carryovers) 170,498,739$      58,199,715$             112,299,024$      184,468,902$     88,416,871$       96,052,031$      

PLAN FOR UNSPENT BALANCES: Of the $112.3 million 
variance, 92% or $103 million are for projects in progress to 
be carried over to next fiscal year; and 8% or $9.3 million are 
available.   194,615,692$    

Surplus / Deficit 46,239,222$        159,572,134$         113,332,912$     60,629,380$      160,759,487$     91,973,955$      57,505,615$      

NOTE ON FY2018 and FY2019 BUDGETS:

* Measure K revenue projections for FY2019 include 2% annual growth rate

CARRYOVER CALCULATION Public Safety FY2018 budget includes additional funds for Regional Operations Ce

Year‐End Fund Balance 159,573,377$         160,726,267$     Pescadero Fire Station projects

Due To/Due From

Fund Balance ‐ Reserves 10% ‐8,552,491  ‐9,139,504 

Fund Balance ‐ Available ‐22,488,748  ‐26,660,608 

Carryover Committed Following Year 128,532,139$         124,926,155$    

Page 70



 

Ongoing, 
34,144,111

Parks
5,030,000

ISD
5,000,000

Housing

22,000,000

Seton (Verity)
5,000,000

SamTrans 2,500,000

Big Lift 2,500,000 Fire Engine 
Replacement 
1,500,000

Whole Person 
Care 

2,000,000
District Specific, 

3,750,000

FAA 3,500,000

0

10,000,000

20,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

50,000,000

60,000,000

70,000,000

80,000,000

90,000,000

FY 2017‐18 Budget

$42,750,000
One Time 

$44,174,111 

Ongoing 

Allocations

Page 71



 
 
 

FY 2017‐18 RECOMMENDATIONS 
MEASURE K PERFORMANCE MEASURES AD HOC COMMITTEE 

Meetings January 9 and 16, 2019 
 

(Members: Daniel Quigg, Michael Kovalich, Michael Salazar) 

 

 

The following are the recommendations made by the Performance Measures Ad Hoc Committee: 

 

1) Measure K Performance Reporting – the current presentation of the performance data is very 

large and cumbersome spreadsheets that makes it difficult to understand how Measure K is 

performing 

a. Create a separate spreadsheet for the District‐Discretionary initiatives 

2) Board District‐Discretionary Initiatives – many times these are one‐time projects, such as repairs 

to community‐based organizations, where actual performance is not reported 

a. No longer require District ‐Discretionary initiatives to have performance measures 

attached to them 

3) Calculations of Measures Meeting Target – the data is skewed due to those initiatives still in 

progress being coded as “Target not Met” 

a. Only report the actual performance on initiatives that are completed (for those not in a 

program area). 

b. Take the District‐Discretionary initiatives out of the overall calculation of the percent of 

performance targets met. 

c. Remove the term “In Progress” and “Target Not Met” for those initiatives that are 

ongoing or still in progress 

4) Measure K Web‐Site – the web‐site currently focusses mostly on performance 

a. Add a financial section to the web‐site, including links to the annual financial audits and 

the stacking charts on the budgeted and expenditure amounts 

 

 

 

Page 72




